
MEETING MINUTES OF THE CITY COMMISSION 
OF THE CITY OF DEVILS LAKE, ND 

SPECIAL MEETING 
AUGUST 01, 2024 

 
The special meeting of the Devils Lake City Commission was held on August 01, 2024 with the 
following members present: President Moe and Commissioners Hach, Knowski, Pierce, and 
Uhlenkamp. 

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 

The City Administrator said the Capital Improvement Plan Committee met last week and he 
thanked Assistant City Engineer Devin Gathman for his work on the plan. The Assistant City 
Engineer reviewed the yearly summary of projects with cost shares and maps for past, present, 
and future projects. He said the plan as well as past completed projects should put the City in a 
good position infrastructure wise. He said the South Side Watermain project is currently 
underway, the West Side Mill & Overlay would begin in a couple weeks, and the Stromquist 
Paving Project will begin in a few weeks. He said these projects have been scheduled, bid out, 
and will be completed this year. The Assistant City Engineer went over planned projects for the 
next few years, to include the NDDOT along College Drive for next summer. 

Commissioner Pierce asked about plans to improve sidewalks in future years. The Assistant City 
Engineer said the City budgets around $70,000 per year for the 50/50 cost share program with 
local property owners. He said the program is scheduled for every year.  

The Assistant City Engineer said their department is happy with where the community is at with 
the state of its infrastructure. President Moe said he was very satisfied and happy with the quality 
of the infrastructure in town. He said there have been a lot of improvements made over the past 
decade. He said a lot of communities would be happy to be where Devils Lake is at. President 
Moe said the Prairie Dog funding has been huge to help the City reach its goals. He thanked the 
Engineering Department for their work putting together the plan.  

The City Administrator provided a briefing on the funding framework to pay for the projects. He 
said there are four major buckets: Prairie Dog, Sales Tax Infrastructure, Public Buildings Reserve 
Fund, and Water Source Replacement Fund. He provided background on the purpose of the 
Water Source Replacement Fund. He proposed always keeping the fund above $3 million but 
using any additional balance and revenues for water or sewer projects. The City Administrator 
said any significant investments related to the City’s water source would come with some sort of 
a state and/or federal cost share and the City would have a four or five year notice and could 
therefore save up the $275,000 brought in per year from the fee in addition to the $3 million 
base, giving the City a large enough balance to cover or bond for its share of such a project. The 
funding framework in the Capital Improvement Plan depicts the City paying for the West Side 
Watermain project with the Water Source Replacement Fund and then financing against the 
revenue brought in by the fee every year for the South Side Watermain Project. President Moe 



asked about using the Water Source Replacement Fund for lift station improvements. The City 
Administrator said he was not sure if that could be considered “water source”. He said he knows 
for sure that the fund has been used for watermain projects in the past. 

The City Administrator said they would like to budget $500,000 for an interior remodel of City 
Hall out of the Public Buildings Reserve Fund. He said City Hall needs new lighting, and ADA 
accessible entrance, new carpet, new furniture, and improved audio-visual capabilities for the 
Commission Chambers. Commissioner Pierce asked when the last renovations to City Hall 
occurred. President Moe said it has been a long time. The City Administrator said there is now a 
reoccurring transfer out of the Sales Tax Infrastructure Fund to the Public Buildings Reserve Fund 
for future building maintenance needs. President Moe said there have been plans to expand the 
building to the west with a new Commission Chambers but that it would be an expensive project. 
He said given everything going on, expanding City Hall may not be the best thing right now. The 
City Administrator said that upon the City Commission approving the Capital Improvement Plan, 
that would give staff a greenlight to start pursuing plans for a remodel this fall to hopefully begin 
executing in 2025. 

The City Administrator noted that these are just plans and if the plans need to be adapted and 
adjusted, City staff is prepared. President Moe said he feels the City Has one of the best Capital 
Improvement Plans in the state.  

EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT PLAN 

The City Administrator said the updated Equipment Replacement Plan reflects the 2024 forecast 
and 2025 budget recommendations. He went over the equipment plans for each department.  

DEBT SCHEDULE REVIEW 

The City Administrator said he attached a new Debt Schedule spreadsheet as a new way to show 
the City’s debt obligations and reserve balances.  

CITY ADMINISTRATOR CLASSIFICATION DIRECTION 

President Moe said there was a meeting last week with Tanya Weiler, the City’s Human Resources 
Consultant, the City Administrator, Commission Vice President and himself to discuss whether to 
recommend moving the City Administrator to a contract position or keep it a civil service position. 
President Moe said it was worked out to recommend keeping it on the salary schedule and civil 
service. President Moe recommended moving the position from a Grade 21 to a Grade 22, to put 
the position on equal footing with the highest graded department head position. Commissioner 
Knowski said he agreed with that direction. 

 

 



GENERAL FUND AND MILL LEVY OVERVIEW 

The City Administrator reviewed some changes to the General Fund since the last budget briefing. 
He said contributions to the Rodeo decreased from $15,000 to $10,000. He said the highest-level 
sponsorship was $7,500 so the City would still be going over and beyond that. He communicated 
extra transfers out of the General Fund to the equipment replacement schedule for future 
technology upgrades. He said he also added extra funds for out of state travel for the Mayor and 
himself. The City Administrator said the mill levy would remain flat at 91.11 mills. He said that a 
variety of needs had to be balanced to keep the mills flat.  

President Moe thanked the City Administrator for the work on the budget. He said there is a lot 
going on in the community, with the school district bond referendum passing, ambulance service 
property tax levy, and an increase in valuations. He said the City wants to do their part to 
minimize the property tax burden on City residents and manage the City’s increased expenses 
responsibly. He said the City is hoping to keep its expenses down the best it can. Commissioner 
Knowski noted how valuations increased, the school district bond referendum will be hitting 
property tax bills, and now the ambulance service district being created will add that on as well 
He said the City should make it a priority to cut mills, not just keep them flat. He asked if there 
was something the City Administrator could recommend so the City could see a to see a mill 
reduction. President Moe said that the City should look at that closer given the mill value having 
increased. President Moe said the City should show good faith in doing its part to cut while others 
have increased. Commissioner Knowski said if the City can responsibly function at this level, it 
should be strongly look a reducing by a mill or two for the 2025 budget. 

The City Administrator said that expenses in the budget are up 11% from 2024 to 2025. He noted 
that in a time of high inflation between 2022 and 2024 there was very little increase. He said he 
felt it pretty reasonable for the Commission to suggest the City shouldn’t be increasing its 
spending more than 10% in one year and that a reduction in one mill would put this City at that 
10% increase. The City Administrator said he would look to see what he could do to trim the 
budget and get that dollar increase down to 10%. He said the initial priority was to meet as many 
of the City departments’ requests without increasing mills.  

President Moe communicated that he knows the City has been a high-level supporter of the 
Rodeo but that there are a lot of requests for dollars and the Rodeo has seen financial success 
which is why the City felt reducing its sponsorship was justified. Brandon Padilla with the Rodeo 
said that at the end of every year they end up with a little extra money. He said they do not keep 
the money and donate it to a variety of groups like 4-H, girl scouts, and boy scouts. He said 
whatever is left after that is used for the next year’s rodeo to make it better and enhance it. Mr. 
Padilla gave an overview of the growth the rodeo has seen over the last couple years. He said the 
Chamber calculated that the Rodeo contributes close to a $1 million in economic impact to the 
region. President Moe said they have spent the City’s money wisely, done a really good job, and 
that it is great having the Rodeo back. Mr. Padilla said they have appreciated the City’s support 
over the past years. He said when they were starting it back up that the City’s initial support was 
critical to getting local businesses to sign up as sponsors and getting behind the event. President 



Moe said there are a lot of requests for funding, it appears the rodeo is doing well and thriving, 
and that he thought they were doing a good job. Mr. Padilla stressed that nobody individually 
makes money on the Rodeo. Commissioner Knowski said his thoughts were that if the Rodeo is 
continually in the black that it is a signal the City can slowly reduce its contribution given it isn’t 
in financial trouble. President Moe noted that the City is still contributing to the Rodeo. The City 
Administrator said he didn’t feel there was anything wrong with over time lowering its 
sponsorship of the rodeo down from the original $15,000 to the highest-level sponsorship tier. 
He said he felt confident the City would always sponsor and promote the rodeo, but that it would 
be most appropriate moving forward at the highest level sponsorship level. He added that the 
City already provides a $25,000 contribution to the Chamber as a universal sponsorship for all 
the events they put on and support.  

The meeting adjourned at 12:13pm. 

 
 
__________________________________ __________________________________ 
SPENCER HALVORSON  
CITY ADMINISTRATOR/AUDITOR  
 

JIM MOE 
PRESIDENT OF CITY COMMISSION 
 

 


